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Australian Turf Club

Chairman’s Report

“

As Chairman of the
Australian Turf Club, it
is an honour to deliver
our Club’s fourth annual
report on behalf of the
Board of Directors.”
Michael Crismale

We are particularly pleased to report
a strong and positive financial result
for the Club, as this continues to
benefit our 15,310 Members, the NSW
racing industry, and everyone who
enjoys our great sport at the ATC’s four
metropolitan tracks.
Several years of prudent financial
management, and focus from our
Board and Executive, has put the future
of Sydney racing and the Australian

Turf Club in undoubtedly its healthiest
position yet, as we approach the fifth
anniversary of the merger.
There have been many highlights
over the past 12 months, as we retire
the remaining legacy debt ahead of
this exciting period of growth and
investment that we have entered.
I make particular mention of just some
of these below.

The Highlights
• A full refurbishment of Rosehill Gardens has begun, including a new indoor
betting ring, refreshed bars and restaurants, better access to the outdoor
grandstand seating, and renovated private suites;
• The opening of The Stables at Royal Randwick to all ATC Members on race days,
along with greater access to the Chairman’s Club, and other Members-only areas
on several levels of the Queen Elizabeth II Grandstand;
• The signing of a record TV deal for Sydney racing and the Club, which provides
an ongoing and sustainable financial return to the ATC;
• A second running of The Championships at Royal Randwick in the Autumn,
with its future further assured by favourable “tax parity’’ changes by the NSW
Government after strong campaigning from Racing NSW;
• The successful rollout of the Point Of Sale system, which has made service more
efficient at Royal Randwick and Rosehill Gardens, and which will in future allow
implementation of a Members loyalty scheme;
• A new ATC website which provides quicker and easier access for all your
Membership, racing and hospitality information, and which is tailored for
desktop, mobile and tablet devices;
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• The highly successful construction and operation of a quarantine centre at
Canterbury Park in conjunction with Racing NSW, now ready to attract even more
international runners to The Championships;
• The completion of the sale of land at Warwick Farm to Inglis as it builds a new
world-class centre for its renowned bloodstock sales; and
• An extra $2 million in prizemoney has been put into the Sydney Spring Carnival
racing program, along with a ten per cent reduction in track fees to make
ownership more affordable, all fully-funded by the ATC from its improved
financial performance.
These are just some of the standout items, many of which are at the core of our
overall strategy to give greater focus to returning extra benefits to ATC Members.

The Club continues to work on
developing popular events for Members
such as the Golf Day, Christmas Party
and “Evenings With’’, as well as working
on exciting new initiatives.
Our Membership Department will
keep you informed, through electronic
weekly updates, and the Chairman’s
Newsletter, a quarterly publication
started this year.
There are several large and longer-term
projects around our racecourses that
we are working hard on to benefit all
of our clients and customers, not only
for race days, but events seven days
a week, as we continue to grow the
business of the ATC.
The development and construction of a
light rail system around Royal Randwick
will accelerate over the next 12 months,
and whilst this will mean some changes
to parking and access for Members in
the short term, the long-term benefits
will be immense – for decades to come.
For this I thank and congratulate the
NSW Government, led by Premier, Mike
Baird, his Deputy Premier and Racing
Minister, Troy Grant, Treasurer, Gladys
Berejiklian, Sport, Trade, Tourism and
Major Events Minister, Stuart Ayers and
Transport Minister, Andrew Constance.
They and their Cabinet colleagues
continue to provide great support to
the racing industry, and the tens of

thousands of people employed in it, not
to mention the many, many more who
enjoy racing all year round.
Many ATC Members would no doubt
have closely followed developments
over the racing industry’s campaign, led
by Racing NSW and in which the ATC
has stood shoulder to shoulder, for tax
parity with Victoria and other states.
We are very grateful to the Baird
Government for its commitment to
reduce the tax takeout on wagering
over coming years, and which will flow
back into the industry. It is a game
changer and Racing NSW are to be
congratulated on negotiating this for the
entire industry.
We look forward to continuing to work
on this and many other important
issues to make Sydney racing even
stronger, and for the ongoing growth of
the ATC’s business and facilities.
A very important business opportunity is
the amalgamation with Rosehill Bowling
Club. Our Victorian and Queensland
“sister” clubs benefit from 7 day a week
registered club equivalents which not
only provide improved amenities for Club
members, but also financial surpluses
that can be reinvested into racing and
the long term growth of the Club. In the
same way that tax parity with Victoria
and Queensland will help drive the
racing industry forward, this competitive

parity in service offerings and asset
acquisition will help the ATC better
compete and structure its business to
maintain the pace set interstate.
This amalgamation is an important part
of reconnecting with Western Sydney,
however we need to make sure, like in
all of our dealings, that we can achieve
positive business outcomes at every stage.
We are proud of the part we are playing
in the region with local governments,
and through our membership of leading
civic bodies, further enhancing Rosehill
Gardens as one of Sydney’s and the
ATC’s premier tracks.
Warwick Farm and Canterbury Park
remain important contributors to
Sydney racing and they continue to
shoulder a significant part of our 113
race meetings we hold each year.
As previously mentioned, our Sydney
Spring Carnival program has been
greatly bolstered by an injection of
prizemoney of more than $2 million,
across five Group 1’s down through
the whole program, including some
significant early two year old races. We
see this as only the beginning of the
strengthening our race and prizemoney
program throughout the year.
These phase one increases to the early
juvenile races will of course provide
owners and trainers with greater
incentive to build towards the biggest
two year old race of all – the $3.5
million Longines Golden Slipper.
We are very pleased with the changes
that we have made to make the
Longines Golden Slipper Carnival its own
signature event, including Australia’s
biggest day of Group One racing.
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Earlier this year we were also thrilled
that The BMW, now the feature race on
its own day, outrated all distance races,
including the Melbourne Cup, as the
best in the country.

To the all-important owners who pay the
bills that keep the show rolling, and the
jockeys, trainers, strappers and stable
staff who are so important to the welfare
of the horses, our thanks.

And we look forward to year three of
The Championships, which in such
a short space of time has gained
recognition around the world as a
remarkable event – on and off the
track – drawing visitors to Sydney,
showcasing our racing and our city.

We must especially acknowledge
the grace and power of those mighty
thoroughbreds on the track.

Running the Club and racing in Sydney
means we have many partners and it is
important we recognise their contribution.
To Racing NSW, its Chairman, John
Messara and his Board, and their
CEO, Peter V’Landys, so much has
been achieved this year highlighted
by tax parity negotiations and a record
media rights deal however, we need
to continue to refine our role definition
and core responsibilities and to work
more strategically together. I am sure
that achieving this will benefit everyone
in the industry.
A special thanks to all of our
Foundation Partners; TAB, James
Boags, BMW, The Star, Moët &
Chandon and Longines.
And to our wonderful sponsors who
support Sydney racing all throughout
the year, we couldn’t do it without you.
There are so many others across the
industry, who with ATC provide great
racing, that deserve mention.
Our industry partners TAB, Darley,
as part of the global operation
of Godolphin, Coolmore, Vinery,
Ravnet, Arrowfield, Widden, Inglis,
Thoroughbred Breeders’ NSW, Pro-Ride
Racing, Ascend Sales, Keeneland, Cal
Rei, Segenhoe and Hyland Sportswear
play a huge role.

We also thank Racing NSW Stewards,
and all of the staff, who make race days
run so smoothly, but also crucially, for
their unfailing drive in maintaining the
integrity and outstanding competition
we witness.
To the media who across many
platforms play such a crucial role in
showcasing the sport, we are grateful
for your support week in and week out.
An extra special mention to our official
broadcasters SKY and Network 7;
we have come a long way in just the
past 12 months and I am sure we will
together further build the coverage of
Sydney racing.
And to all of the punters and
customers who visit our racetrack and
keep the industry alive all year around –
a big thanks.
Finally, to the ATC Board, our Executive
and all of the staff, my great gratitude.
I thank all of our Board members,
including Vice-Chairman Laurie Macri,
Steve Grant, Bill Evans, and especially,
our three newest colleagues in Julia
Ritchie, Trish Egan and Matthew
McGrath, who in just 12 months since
their election have already given great
time and selfless service to the Club
and Sydney racing.
Also special thanks to John Camilleri
and Wilf Mula for their service to the
Club whilst Directors.

To our CEO Darren Pearce – our
thanks for your outstanding leadership
and skill in managing your team and
staff through so many complex and
disparate issues.

We all look forward with
great excitement to the future,
and to seeing many of you at
the track.

Michael Crismale
Chairman
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“

Writing this report to
our members and the
wider racing industry
in Spring generates a
sense of optimism. “
Darren Pearce

Sydney racing on the rise
Writing this report to our members
and the wider racing industry in spring
generates a sense of optimism. Indeed
it’s hard not to be optimistic after
perhaps the most stunning Epsom Super
Saturday in recent memory. But beyond
that and after more than four years
of toil, the ATC has turned the corner
financially and strategically and is now
resurgent on a rising tide of opportunity.
The ATC’s journey has not always been
straight forward but most things worth
having are not easily achieved. Our first
12 months was devoted to merging the
business with separate systems and
different cultures and mandates. We
then moved swiftly to construction with
the redevelopment of Royal Randwick
and the need to prudently manage
the business and cash flow impacts of
having one of our key assets unavailable
for an extended period of time. Phase
three involved consolidation post
merger and construction and the sale
of assets to retire legacy debt. This
was successfully delivered. Finally we
have arrived at phase four, growth and
investment. A time to position Sydney
racing for a successful future.
The ATC’s investment ambitions
combined with the State Government’s
infrastructure investment and Racing

NSW’s hard fought wagering tax parity
gains is a perfect storm of opportunity for
the ATC. The Board and management
are focused on making the best of it.
To ensure that the ATC understands the
strategic considerations affecting racing,
the ATC’s business and ATC’s role within
thoroughbred racing - now and into
the future, the ATC will be engaging
with stakeholders to seek their view on
these important issues. The output will
be used as an input to the ATC’s future
vision and long term strategic plan.
A key project already advanced is the
regeneration of the Camellia peninsula.
The State Government’s draft plans
for Camellia, released in August, were
an encouraging first step towards the
redevelopment of the area, and once
finalised in 2016, will further embed
Rosehill Gardens as an industry-leading
entertainment precinct with improved
connectivity and amenities.
The redevelopment of Camellia will be
focused around a new town centre off
Grand Avenue and incorporates the
ATC’s plans for the neighbouring Rosehill
Gardens’ mixed-use/entertainment
precinct, which could include the
development of hotels, Lifestyle Club
facility including swimming pools, club,
entertainment and restaurant facilities
and mixed use precincts including
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commercial, retail and residential. Our
amalgamation with the Rosehill Bowling
Club is an important step to our longer
term vision and one that we seek the
support of Members for.

Parramatta, with its growing night life
and new 30,000-seat Stadium, Rosehill
and the ATC entertainment precinct, and
Sydney Olympic Park, the nation’s major
sporting and events capital.

A revitalised Grand Avenue (and
doesn’t it need it) will act as a catalyst
for a new business activity corridor
capitalising on improved public
transport, while the adjacent mixed
use/entertainment facilities that the ATC
is planning to offer at Rosehill Gardens,
will make Camellia an attractive place
for people to live, work and visit.

As a major stakeholder in Western
Sydney, the ATC recognises that it must
play a civic leadership role in the region
and engage with stakeholders to ensure
that it continues to be well positioned
to deliver high-quality outcomes for the
region and our patrons and cement
our position as one of the region’s key
drivers of tourism, sport and events.

Camellia forms just one part of a broader
Economic, Entertainment and Olympic
Corridor, an area that stretches from
Westmead in the West, through Rosehill
and onto Strathfield and Rhodes in the
east. According to the Deloitte Study
– Restarting Sydney’s Heart: Light Rail
the Engine of Change, the corridor, for
which the ATC is a major landowner and
stakeholder, is expected to house more
than one third of all new jobs and almost
20 per cent of new dwellings in Sydney
within the next 20 years.

As part of our engagement initiatives,
the ATC has supported the Western
Sydney Leadership Dialogue,
Committee for Sydney, Western Sydney
Business Chamber and is a member of
the Committee for Liverpool.

Transport, specifically light rail, as we
have seen at Royal Randwick and the
Sydney CBD Light Rail project, has
the potential to facilitate much of this
transformative change.
It is why the ATC has been actively
campaigning for a light rail connection
from Parramatta to Camellia and on to
Olympic Park and Rhodes, as part of
the WestLine Partnership, a group of
industry leaders in sport, business and
government committed to improving
transport links in Western Sydney.
The impact of a light rail link along
the Olympic Corridor, connecting
Parramatta to Rosehill, Olympic Park
and beyond, will not only improve much
needed accessibility, particularly on
race days, but importantly, help build
on Western Sydney’s appeal as a great
tourism and major events destination.
A light rail connection would also provide
the opportunity to connect established
recreation and cultural precincts in

Through the Western Sydney Leadership
Dialogue, launched by NSW Premier
Mike Baird in March, and developed
to grow Western Sydney’s influence,
the ATC has been able to improve its
understanding of some of the key policy,
planning and development issues
impacting Western Sydney, including the
Western Sydney Airport, Western Sydney
Light Rail and stadia funding, while also
strengthening existing partnerships with
Dialogue collaborators such as Western
Sydney University (WSU), Western
Sydney Business Chamber and the
Committee for Sydney.

Our relationship with our neighbours,
WSU, continues to bear fruit, and
as part of our partnership with the
Hospitality Applied Management
Project Unit, students from WSU have
worked with us on short term hospitality
projects acting as researchers
and consultants, with their project
recommendations implemented at
Rosehill Gardens. We have now taken
this further with an annual scholarship
and investigating initiatives including a
engineering and horticultural study of
racing surfaces best suited to Sydney’s
ever volatile climate.
The ATC is also represented on the
Committee for Liverpool, a high-level
advisory board for the City of Liverpool
that contributes its intellectual capital
and networks across a range of sectors
to support economic and social
development activities in Liverpool. As
the capital of South West Sydney and
home to Warwick Farm Racecourse,
the development of Liverpool and the
opportunity to collaborate with other
interested stakeholders, including
representatives from Government, sport,
business and property development, is
welcome and important.
To achieve real strategic progress, more
certainty and transparency is needed on
the structure and accountability of key
racing functions between ATC and Racing
NSW. Blurred lines of responsibility and
control will not lead to best outcomes.

2015 Financial Year continued our journey to sustainable growth
The past year has seen the financial performance of the Club take another leap
forward on its journey towards sustainable growth.
Legacy debt has been reduced by a further $17m; a record media rights deal
has been struck with SKY for the next ten years; gaining control of The Stables on
Level 4 of the QEII grandstand at Royal Randwick has enabled a revamped service
offering to Members; our racing program has gone from strength to strength, and
significant production efficiencies were achieved in race day hospitality and events,
while maintaining the superior quality of product for which ATC is known.
The continuing strength of our financial performance now allows us to re-invest profits
back to members and the racing industry and support our growth and investment phase.
Total comprehensive income for ATC for the 12-month period ended 31 July 2015
was an accounting loss of $2.438m after a series of adjustments. The underlying
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business result however showed positive growth with an operating surplus of
$10.996m, which is an improvement of $7.212m on the previous year:
Comprehensive income vs. Operating Surplus
In thousands of AUD
Total Income
Total Expenses
Total Comprehensive Income for the period

2015
231,846
(234,284)
(2,438)

2014
201,344
(193,620)
7,724

2013
310,758
(223,776)
86,982

Add / (Subtract):
Randwick & Rosehill Redevelopment
Funding Income

(3,879)

(29)

(124,149)

(Profit) / Loss on Sale of Non-Core Assets

(17,401)

959

(11,020)

Defined Benefit Plan Actuarial (Profits) /
Losses - Reserves

(1,770)

(389)

(2,407)

Share of impairment recognised by associates
Impairment in carrying value equityaccounted associates
RNSW PGI Income Provision
Impairments in carrying value of assets

Operating Surplus / (Deficit)

-

2,028

-

31,116

3,023

-

2,872

-

-

2,496

(9,532)

45,729

13,434

(3,940)

(91,847)

10,996

3,784

(4,865)

The Club’s improved performance came primarily via increased revenue and
efficiencies in our race day operations, wagering income via the TAB Wagering
Incentive Fee, and our new media broadcast deal.
Other financial highlights include:
• We have retired a further $17m in legacy term debt, allowing the Club to invest profits
in future strategic initiatives and allow a portion of profits to be returned to industry;
• In the coming financial year, ATC will increase prizemoney by $2.7m, with a major
injection to our spring carnival program and increases across other race programs;
• We will also reduce track fees across all venues by 10%, resulting in a saving to
owners and trainers of over $250,000.
Membership – more to be done
Club Membership plateaued during the
2015 season, with 15,310 members at
the end of the 2015 season.

the Club will introduce Reward Dollars
directly loaded to membership cards to
be spent on-course.

We greatly value the on-going support
provided by our Members, and
the continuation of our reward and
initiatives programs for our most loyal
race goers is a sign of our appreciation.
Over 3,900 Members benefited from
these Members Rewards during the
2015 racing season - almost double
the previous year, simply for visiting
the track. We are continuing to develop
and expand on our Membership loyalty
program and in the 2016 financial year

Our Young Member acquisition
strategy has provided a strong 55%
representation of youth within our new
Member category and will contribute
to building a generation of new and
passionate racegoers in years to come.
In addition to this, we would also like to
congratulate our new 30 Year and 50
Year Members and thank them for their
dedication to the ATC and unwavering
passion for the racing industry.

We continually strive to offer Members
the opportunity to attend our sought
after events and have received extremely
positive feedback regarding our
reintroduction of the Scone Cup trip,
Track work Breakfasts, ATC Members
Golf Day and ‘Evening With’ functions.
Autumn Carnival 2015 – from
strength to strength
After implementing a new programming
format, the 2015 Autumn carnival
proved to not only be successful amongst
guests, but also in attracting some of the
best Australian horses, as well as six high
class international runners.
The BMW as a standalone day, saw
increased returns in wagering with the
race independently rated higher than
the Melbourne Cup. A truly amazing feat
and something we are very proud of.
The Longines Queen Elizabeth II Stakes
attracted international runners including
two from Japan and Red Cadeaux from
England, who once again finished 2nd.
Both the winner Criterion and Red
Cadeaux went on to race in Hong Kong
a fortnight later, which positions the
QEII as an international race.
With an extended period of wet weather
(including the historical postponement
of Day 1 of the Championships) crowds
were down but with even luck, we can
reverse that in 2016.
Great horses need great horse people
On behalf of the Club I must congratulate
our outstanding Premiership winners
for the 2014 / 2015 racing season.
Chris Waller goes from strength to
strength as the nation’s leading trainer.
He is breaking records at will. He is a
capital “P” professional in all that he
does. The same can be said for Hugh
Bowman. Hugh’s fight back in the
jockey’s premiership combined with his
exceptional Spring remind us all how
lucky we are to have riders like Bowman,
McDonald, Shinn and company
providing such great entertainment week
in and week out. In the apprentice ranks,
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we are also blessed to have a rising
star like Winona Costin. Now with Team
Snowden, we can expect Winona to be a
force in Sydney racing for years to come.
Exciting changes for the FY16 calendar
With such a successful autumn program
under our belt, the Club is now focussed
on our spring program. This includes
some major prizemoney announcements.
Amongst the $2 million in prizemoney
increases in spring 2015 races are:
• Group 1 The Star Epsom receiving a
$500,000 boost to become Sydney’s
second $1 million race in the spring,
alongside the Group 1 De Bortoli
Wines Golden Rose;
• McGrath Estate Agents Metropolitan
increases to $750,000; and
• All other Group 1 races increase to
$500,000.
Commencing from 1 October 2015,
Saturday meetings in Sydney will feature
Highway Handicap; restricted to bona
fide country-trained and domiciled horses
with prizemoney of $40,000; equivalent
to the midweek level but much higher
than provincial and country prizemoney
levels to create a win win scenario.
Also commencing on 1 October 2015
will be increases in minimum topweights for benchmark and other
non-Group races (except two year-old
maiden and Class 1-3 races), which will
encourage greater race participation
and increased field sizes.
We hope to soon announce some
initiatives to improve feature handicap
weight scales to generate better
industry and wagering outcomes in
concert with Racing NSW after the
compressed weights of The Star Epsom
and McGrath Metropolitan this year.
Tracks Management – under one
banner to benefit all
Our tracks team continues to deliver
quality racing surfaces despite the many
challenges put forward by Sydney’s
weather. This was particularly evident
during our late autumn and winter

racing seasons, where we received a
battering from a very wet period.
The one surface we are still working on
is the Kensington Track. Regrettably,
meetings needed to be transferred
from this track due to the quality of the
surface, and there are no scheduled
races on the Kensington Track for the
2016 season. The Club and Racing
NSW are currently conducting tests on
track profile and grass to determine
its future. The track will be used for
gallops until a final decision is made
during summer 2015-16.
Management of all racecourses will be
conducted in-house at the expiration of
the Turnpoint contract in late November.
The saving in operational costs will be
passed on to owners, starting with the
reduction in track fees noted above.
Rosehill Gardens received a $2million
upgrade to training facilities with the
conversion of the cinders track to sand.
Completing our race and training
track masterplan is a priority for this
financial year. More news on that will be
published in the not too distant future.
Digital Strategy – a new frontier
The rise of digital and the changing
expectations of our customers to have
more access to engaging, informative and
creative content presents an opportunity
for the Club, but also requires investment.
The Commercial team has developed a
digital strategy that includes a roadmap
for a number of initiatives designed to
enhance Members’ race day experience
and get even more value from their
Membership. A new ATC website that is
able to be viewed on all devices launched
in September 2015 following 12 months
of consultation and development. Stage
2 will include Member log-ins linked
to shopping carts so members can
purchase their additional tickets and
hospitality online. Stage 3 will feature
exciting new features designed to
reward loyalty amongst other things.
Members will notice increased use
of ATC commissioned video content

and social media. Digital allows us to
capture and broadcast all the wonderful
stories from our tracks and share them
with our Members over our own website
and also social media; so all Members
are encouraged to follow ATC on Twitter,
Instagram, Periscope and Facebook.
Hospitality & Events – nobody does it
better than ATC
Non Race Day Events
Our non race day events business is
now a substantial business in its own
right turning over $15.47m
Annual highlights include:
• The final (and perhaps best) Future
Music Festival was held. The festival
had become Sydney’s ultimate end
of summer music fixture at Royal
Randwick however, the promoter has
refocused their business and withdrew
from the music festival segment.
• The strengthening of relationships
with The Board of Studies, Teaching
and Educational Standards NSW
(BOSTES) at Rosehill Gardens and
Canterbury Park and the University
of NSW at Royal Randwick providing
facilities and infrastructure for up
to 125,000 exam candidates and
officials across the academic year.
• The 2015 Caravan, Camping and
Holiday Supershow at Rosehill
Gardens saw record crowd numbers
attend this prestigious show ensuring
that this event remains one of the
most popular of its kind in the country.
The Club recently negotiated a new
multi-year agreement that secures the
event for the next five years.
• Exciting new events are planned for
both Rosehill Gardens and Royal
Randwick in the next year including
the Sydney Santa Spectacular which
promises great outcomes.
Race Day Events
Race day dining and entertainment at our
racecourses benefited from an overhaul
during the year providing more options
and menu choices solutions for Members
and guests. A project of continuous
improvement commenced during the
year, delivering significant efficiencies
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in the operation, whilst maintaining the
quality that the Club is renowned for.
Annual highlights include:
• Our in-house team also produced world
class dining and was recently awarded
BEST CATERER AT A MAJOR EVENT,
NSW, at the recent 2015 Savour
Australia™ Restaurant & Catering
HOSTPLUS Awards for Excellence for
our catering at The Championships.
• The second year of The Championships
featured something for everyone,
including the Little Sydney precinct
with collaboration partners Matt
Moran, Icebergs and China Doll filling
pavilions with decadent food and
beverages and the seasoned, social
and celebrity racegoers.
• The latest Point Of Sale technology
was rolled out at our venues and
now provides information and reports
tracking efficiency, profitability
and customer spend patterns – all
information now used to make clearly
informed decisions as we go about
continually improving the business.
Coupled with the introduction of
the contactless Pay-pass payment
system, customers now experience
high-speed cashless transactions
across the business.
Sponsorship – continuing to grow
Sponsorship growth continued during
the financial year with a $600,000 net
increase in revenue and we are forecasting
this trend to continue in the 2016 year.
Great partnerships play an integral part
in any successful race or sports club.
Partners such as BMW, Longines, TAB,
Lion, Moet & Chandon and The Star
amongst many others have been long
term supporters of Sydney racing and their
contribution is vital to our ongoing success.
This year the Club secured a major FMCG
and global brand partnership when we
welcomed Colgate Optic White to the ATC
stable. Under the partnership, Colgate
Optic White will partner with one of the
ATC’s most famous Spring Group 1’s the
George Main Stakes.
We also strengthened our partnership
with Longines in 2015, extending their

great support to Rosehill, with Longines
becoming the naming rights partner to
the Golden Slipper, starting in autumn
2016 for three years. This increased
partnership commitment by the leader
in Thoroughbred partnerships globally
is a continued vote of confidence in the
Club and the direction of Sydney racing.
We would also like to welcome a
number of new partners including
Hertz, Dilmah, South Sydney Rabbitohs
and Travel the World.
The Stables Sydney – Back in ATC hands
Following a strategic review of
operations in the QEII grandstand at
Royal Randwick, ATC took control
of what was our incorporated Joint
Venture entity with Keystone Group,
known as ‘The Stables Sydney,’ on
29 April 2015. This allows us to
better align and manage the entire
grandstand, including all operations on
level 4. The level 4 space is still known
as ‘The Stables,’ and is now available
to all Members to enjoy on race days.
The space will also be used for nonrace day events throughout the year.
We anticipate a 2.5 to 3 year pay back
on this investment whilst immediately
reaping the benefits of improved
grandstand access and functionality.
Performance this spring under new
arrangements has seen the grandstand
operating much better and member
feedback has been positive.
Media Rights – A New Future
On 15 March 2015 the media rights
agreement with TVN was dissolved
under a Deed of Separation signed by all
shareholders. The dissolution was driven
by different funding models and strategies
between NSW and Victoria and was not
a reflection on the many dedicated staff
of TVN who took pride in presenting
premium racing to TVN’s viewers and
racing customers. From dissolution,
the Club’s media rights were assigned
to SKY for a record fee under a 10-year
agreement. The agreement brokered
in concert with Racing NSW, Provincial
and Country Clubs included exclusive
domestic and international rights, and
non-exclusive digital rights. A dedicated

SKY racing channel, SKY Thoroughbred
Central broadcasts all ATC race meetings
and barrier trials, as well as other ATC
content. The new deal with SKY gives
the Club greater funding certainty into
the future. It is proposed that an industry
management committee be formed
to assist Sky develop the content and
presentation of the channel and that the
ATC is represented on that committee.
Property – facilities to benefit from
new projects
The refurbishment of Rosehill Gardens is
the final merger action to be completed.
After extensive negotiations with
suppliers and Racing NSW, construction
commenced in September 2015.
Existing levels 1, 2 and 3 are due for
completion in time for the 2016 Golden
Slipper Carnival, with the refurbishment
of the remaining levels being undertaken
between May – August 2016.
At Royal Randwick, development
approval was received for construction
of a hotel adjacent to the Officials Stand
and negotiations with government were
concluded for Light Rail construction
around the precinct.
Planning has been on-going for capital
works at Warwick Farm, following
confirmation that Inglis will re-locate to
premises purchased from the Club, and
the sale of Cooper’s Paddock.
At Canterbury Park, a world-class
quarantine centre was built to house
the international horses for The
Championships. A masterplan is currently
being developed for Canterbury Park.
Heritage – preserving and sharing our
Club’s rich history
The Heritage Office continue to raise
awareness of the Club’s collection and
racing history through community talks,
historical race book entries, and the
Heritage Office “Racing Through Time”
newsletter.
Milestones in this past year were the
150th running of the Doncaster and
the Sydney Cup. These were celebrated
by staging exhibitions over the 2 race
days in the Heritage Gallery. Another
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significant milestone was the 100th
anniversary of the landing at Gallipoli.
This anniversary was acknowledged
with a small display at the entrance to
the grandstand recognising the Club’s
contribution to the war effort.
A significant donation to the Club in this
year was a film canister containing the
original print of ‘The Mighty Conqueror’ – a
ten-minute film about Phar Lap completed
in late 1931. It was screened on the main
screens on George Main Stakes Day.
The local community were given the
rare opportunity to get up close and
personal with the collection. “And
They’re Racing....An introduction to
the ATC Heritage Collection” exhibition
was on display at the Bowen Library
for 4 months and featured the 1878
Doncaster Trophy, the 1866 Sydney
Cup, many artworks, photographs and
never before seen racing ephemera.
The Heritage Society look forward to
enhancing its display of our heritage
collections as it relocates to the new
premises formerly occupied by the racing
industry forensic laboratory in 2016.
People – our most important resource
The Club continues to invest in its most
valuable resource – its people, through
multiple channels.
In 2015, the Club invested over 2,400
hours in training; including leadership
development programs for management
at various levels.
Biometric time and attendance systems
were installed at all venues to enable
improved time keeping and payroll
management for our more than 1,500
casual workers.
We achieved a reduction in employee
incidents of 36.5% and rolled out a
well-being program for employees,
which included a My Challenge Walking
Activity, a health expo and yoga sessions.
We recognised excellence through
employee awards.

o Autumn Star in 2015 was Veronica
Melick. This award is peer nominated
for individuals who go over and above
their roles during our busy Autumn
Carnival period.
o Values Awards recognise individuals
who epitomize ATC Corporate Values:
• Integrity – Sue Hutchinson, Racing
Services Manager.
• Customer Service – Jamal Nakoul,
Assistant Operations Manager.
• Productivity – Melissa Dixon,
Executive Sous Chef.
• Accountability – Tony Carroll,
Management Accountant.
• Teamwork – Virginia Trimmis,
Receptionist/Operations.

The Year Ahead
Returns to Industry and new growth
strategies
The 2016 year will be another year of
change for ATC with a number of major
projects rolling out including:
• Completion of the Rosehill Gardens
Refurbishment;
• Commencement of Light Rail
construction at Royal Randwick;
• Rollout of our Digital web platform
and further enhancements to our
Member loyalty program;
• Distributions to industry participants
through prizemoney increases and
reductions in track fees;
• Capital works program at Governor
Macquarie Drive, Warwick Farm
and commencement of the Inglis
development;
• Negotiation of tax parity distribution to
industry;
• Rosehill Bowling Club amalgamation
(subject to Member approval);
• Develop long term strategic plan;

• Funding the new Randwick horse
stables and hotel developments.
Among many other projects in what
has become a large and complex
business to manage.

Thank You….
I thank the Board for their leadership,
guidance and commitment as we
continue to develop a long term strategic
business plan. I make particular note
that their role is honorary and they
invest many hours of their time to better
the Club and racing. In particular I must
acknowledge the tireless efforts of our
Chairman, Michael Crismale, and Vice
Chairman, Laurie Macri, Steve Grant,
Chair of the Property Committee and
all the Board. I thank the hardworking
and award winning staff of the ATC for
their dedication and professionalism.
It’s a team effort day in and day out.
I am grateful for the support of all
our members, sponsors, trustees,
trainers, jockeys, owners, punters,
Stewards, Tabcorp, Racing NSW, NSW
Government and Racing Minister Troy
Grant, bookmakers, event clients,
Sky, media, race callers and business
partners that make our racedays and
events vibrant and special. With the
passing of Bart Cummings AM, racing
also lost a true legend of the sport
this year; a man whose records and
achievements may never be equalled.

And finally a special thank
you to the thoroughbreds
for providing us all with
such tremendous thrills and
lasting memories.

• Progress property development
masterplans with particular focus on
Rosehill/Camellia and Canterbury;
• In source tracks and gardens
maintenance;
• Resolve Kensington Track
performance; and

Darren Pearce
Chief Executive
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Directors’ Report

For the year ended 31 July 2015

The directors present their report together with the financial statements of Australian Turf Club Limited (the Company), for the
year 1 August 2014 to 31 July 2015 and the auditor’s report thereon.

1

Directors

The directors of the Company at any time during or since the end of the year 1 August 2014 to 31 July 2015 are:

Mr Michael Crismale

Mr Laurie Macri

Ms Trish Egan

Chartered Accountant

Independent Director

Independent Director

• Appointed to the Board
1 February 2011

• Appointed to the Board
1 February 2011

• Appointed to the Board
1 February 2015

• Appointed to the Board
25 February 2014

• Chairman of the Board of
the Company from
3 February 2014

• Vice Chairman of the
Board of the Company
from 3 February 2014

• Head, Community and
Consumer, Diabetes NSW

• Chief Economist, Westpac
Banking Corporation

• Non-Executive Director of
ThoroughVisioN (TVN)

• Former Director of the
NSW Racehorse Owners
Association

• Thoroughbred racehorse
owner

• Former Chairman
Australian Business
Economists; Life Member

• Non-Executive Director of
Sydney Football Club
• Chairman of Matrium
Technologies Pty Ltd
• Chairman of Matrium
Financial Services Pty Ltd
• Non-executive Director of
various private companies
• Vice Chairman, Carbine
Club of NSW
• Thoroughbred breeder
and racehorse owner
• Member of Remuneration
Committee
• Former Sydney Turf Club
Board Member

• Member of Finance and
Wagering Committee

• Former Sydney Turf Club
Board Member

• Member of Property and
Infrastructure Committee

• Executive Director of the
Macquarie Bank Group

• Member of Membership
and Race Day Committee

• Chairman of Finance and
Wagering Committee
• Chairman of Remuneration
Committee
• Member of Property and
Infrastructure Committee

Mr Bill Evans

• Weekly racegoer
• Chairman of Audit,
Risk and Compliance
Committee
• Appointed to the Board
25 February 2014
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Mr Steve Grant

Mr Matthew McGrath

For the year ended 31 July 2015

Ms Julia Ritchie

Independent Director
GAICD
• Appointed to the Board
25 February 2014

• Appointed to the Board
1 February 2015

• Appointed to the Board
1 February 2015

• Director of Capital
Corporation

• Director Australis
Communications

• Director of Bluestone
Property Solutions

• Director Zekii CRM

• Former Director NSW
Racehorse Owners
Association

• Director of Eden Brae
Homes
• Racehorse owner and
breeder for over 30 years
• Chairman of Property and
Infrastructure Committee

• Thoroughbred racehorse
owner over past 5 years
• Member of Audit, Risk and
Compliance Committee
• Member of Finance and
Wagering Committee
• Member of Membership
and Race Day Committee

• Former Director of the
Australian Jockey Club
Limited
• Thoroughbred breeder
and racehorse owner for
over 30 years
• Owner and Director of
Wild Oaks and Oak Ridge
Spelling & Agistment
farms
• Owner and Director of
J.Robins Manufacturing
Pty Ltd
• Chair of Membership and
Race Day Committee
• Member of Audit, Risk and
Compliance Committee
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Australian Turf Club Board

For the year ended 31 July 2015

Left to right: Matthew McGrath, Trish Egan, Laurie Macri, Michael Crismale,
Darren Pearce, Julia Ritchie, Steve Grant, Bill Evans

Former Directors

Mr John Camilleri

Mr Wilf Mula

Independent Director
Chartered Accountant

• Appointed to the Board 1 February 2011

• Appointed to the Board 1 February 2011
• Former CEO of Steggles
• Chairman of the Baiada Group
• Racehorse owner and breeder trading as Fairway
Thoroughbreds
• Former Chairman of Remuneration Committee

• Former STC Board Member and honorary Treasurer
• Chairman of RTSI Holdings group
• Thoroughbred owner and breeder
• Former Director of Australian Stud Book
• Former Non-Executive Director of ThoroughVisioN Pty Ltd
(TVN)

• Former Member of Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee

• Former Chairman of Audit, Risk and Compliance
Committee

• Former Member of Property Committee

• Ceased as a Director on 1 February 2015

• Ceased as a Director on 2 December 2014
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For the year ended 31 July 2015

Incorporation

The Company was incorporated on 1 February 2011 as a Company limited by guarantee. Pursuant to the Australian Jockey
and Sydney Turf Clubs Merger Act 2010, the Minister for Gaming and Racing declared by order published in the NSW Gazette,
that the business of the Australian Jockey Club Limited and Sydney Turf Club be transferred in whole to Australian Turf Club
Limited effective 7 February 2011.

3

Directors’ meetings

The number of directors’ meetings (including meetings of committees of directors) and number of meetings attended by each
of the directors of the Company during the year are:

Director

Finance
& Wagering

Board

Audit, Risk &
Compliance

Renumeration

Property &
Infrastructure

Membership &
Race Day
Experience

A

B

A

B

A

B

A

B

A

B

A

B

Michael Crismale

16

16

4

3

2

2

2

2

3

2

3

1

Laurie Macri

16

16

4

4

2

2

3

2

4

2

2

2

3

3

3

3

Trish Egan

9

9

Bill Evans

16

14

Steve Grant

16

16

Matthew McGrath

9

9

Julia Ritchie

9

John Camilleri
Wilf Mula

1
4

4

1

1

1

3

3

9

1

1

3

3

6

5

1

1

1

1

7

7

1

1

1

1

A – Number of meetings held during the time the director held office during the year
B – Number of meetings attended

4

Short and long term objectives

The Company’s short and long-term objectives are to:
• Be the world’s pre-eminent Thoroughbred Racing Club.
• Complete the investment at Rosehill Gardens.
• Develop a strong business culture within a Club framework.
• Grow race day revenues and wagering turnover.
• Build a strong and active Member community.
• Invest in new facilities to create new forms of entertainment and seven-day a week revenue streams to build on our event,
convention and exhibition capability.
• Investigate and where appropriate invest in diversification opportunities.
• Insource tracks and gardens maintenance.
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For the year ended 31 July 2015

Strategy and principal activities

The Company’s key strategies for achieving these objectives are:
• Wisely invest the remaining $16.4 million in grants at Rosehill Gardens.
• Enhance racing and training facilities and programs to increase field sizes and deliver stronger racing and wagering outcomes.
• To conduct up to 113 metropolitan race meetings per annum in NSW including a number of iconic events on the Australian
racing and social calendar.
• The provision of training facilities for 1,600 horses stabled and in training at our three training venues.
• Manage our 4 racecourse assets to effectively deliver operating activities.
• The provision of membership, hospitality and event services across all venues.
• To establish and maintain respected and productive relationships with key stakeholders.
The Company’s principal activities during the year will be:
• Increase total prizemoney by $2.7m and reduce track fees by 10%.
• Launch a new digital platform to transform customer experiences, increase visitation and investment.
• Work with Transport for NSW to integrate light rail roll-out on Royal Randwick.
• Collaborate with Parramatta City Council and the Department of Planning and Infrastructure on the Camellia District
property development.
• Identify key consumer segments and build new membership categories to drive acquisition and introduce a loyalty program
to increase member attendances and grow profitability.
• Invest in new technology and smart systems to deliver convenience and outstanding customer service to improve visitation
and investment.
• Develop a wider range of consumer preferred products creating new sustainable revenue streams.
• To develop a capital management plan, prudently invest our surpluses and diversify revenue streams.
• To host over 400 diverse non-race day events annually across our venues.
• Fix the Kensington Track.
• Complete a long term strategy for the ATC and Sydney Racing.
• Complete masterplan for our four race courses.
• Complete tracks and training masterplans for Sydney Racing.
• Complete capital works on Governor Macquarie Drive at Warwick Farm to facilitate the Inglis development.
• Complete the amalgamation with the Rosehill Bowling Club (subject to Member approval).

6

Performance measurement

The loss of the Company for the year 1 August 2014 to 31 July 2015 was $4,208,000.
The Company has established and will monitor the following performance measures:
• Achieve a race day attendance target exceeding 460,000.
• Continue to improve underlying operating profit.
• Grow sponsorship revenues by 8% to $9.1m.
• Achieve a membership target of over 16,000 by 31 July 2016.
• Achieve growth in our wagering sales year on year from all sources.
• Substantially complete the Rosehill Gardens development by 31 July 2016.
• Meeting project milestones and budgets.
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For the year ended 31 July 2015

Membership classes and liability

The Company is a company limited by guarantee and without share capital, with one Membership class.
In accordance with the Constitution of the Company, every Voting Member is liable to contribute, for the time they are a
Member, an amount not exceeding $1 during the tenure of their membership or within one year after cessation of their
membership toward the debts and liabilities in the event that the Company is wound up. These liabilities include the costs,
charges and expenses of winding-up. Non-voting Members are not liable to contribute any amount in the event that the
Company is wound up.
The total amount which Voting Members would be required to contribute in the event that the Company is wound up is
$14,851 (2014: $15,144).

8

Lead auditor’s independence declaration

The Lead auditor’s independence declaration is set out on page 17 and forms part of the directors’ report for the year 1 August
2014 to 31 July 2015.

9

Rounding off

The Company is of a kind referred to in ASIC Class Order 98/100 dated 10 July 1998 and in accordance with that Class
Order, amounts in the financial statements and directors’ report have been rounded off to the nearest thousand dollars, unless
otherwise stated.
This report is made in accordance with a resolution of the directors:

Mr Michael Crismale
Chairman
Dated at Sydney this 9th day of October 2015.
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Lead auditor’s independence declaration under
Section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001

To: the directors of Australian Turf Club Limited
I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, in relation to the audit for the financial year ended 31 July 2015 there
have been:
(i)

no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the
audit; and
(ii) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

KPMG

A W Young
Partner
Sydney
9 October 2015

KPMG, an Australian partnership and a member
firm of the KPMG network of independent member
firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity.

Liability limited by a scheme approved under
Professional Standards Legislation.
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Statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 July 2015

2015

2014

208,499
21,280
229,779

201,823
(930)
200,893

(89,318)
(48,955)
(25,070)
(12,199)
(15,890)
(9,510)
(66)
(201,008)

(88,598)
(52,486)
(10,301)
(11,785)
(14,712)
(9,133)
(136)
(187,151)

Results from operating activities

28,771

13,742

Finance income - interest
Finance costs - interest
Net finance costs

297
(2,634)
(2,337)

62
(3,146)
(3,084)

11

(30,642)
(4,208)

(3,323)
7,335

18

1,770
1,770

389
389

(2,438)

7,724

In thousands of AUD
Revenue
Revenue from operations
Other income
Revenue and other income
Expenditure
Prizemoney, trophies and subsidies
Commercial expenses
Administrative expenses
Tracks and training costs
Racing costs
Facilities maintenance expenses
Property costs
Expenditure

Share of profit / (loss) of equity-accounted investees
(Loss) / Profit for the period
Other comprehensive income
Defined benefit plan actuarial gains
Other comprehensive income for the period

Note

5
6

7

Total comprehensive income for the period

The notes on pages 22 to 44 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of financial position
In thousands of AUD

As at 31 July 2015

Note

31 July 2015

31 July 2014

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

8

50,906

19,255

Trade and other receivables

9

27,918

16,458

Assets held for sale

10

-

8,273

Defined benefit asset

18

2,002

762

1,431

1,121

82,257

45,869

329

23,496

Inventories
Total current assets
Investments in equity-accounted investees

11

Investment property

12

-

-

Property, plant and equipment

13

278,335

272,918

Intangible assets

14

382

360

Total non-current assets

279,046

296,774

Total assets

361,303

342,643

Liabilities
Trade and other payables

15

10,734

7,604

Loans and borrowings

16

10,000

10,000

Employee benefits

17

7,000

6,330

Revenue in advance

19

13,653

8,275

Other provisions

20

9,416

-

50,803

32,209

Total current liabilities
Loans and borrowings

16

10,000

27,000

Revenue in advance

19

43,361

16,609

Employee benefits

17

496

471

Other provisions

20

1,786

9,059

Total non-current liabilities

55,643

53,139

Total liabilities

106,446

85,348

Net assets

254,857

257,295

129,447

129,447

125,410

127,848

254,857

257,295

Funds
Reserve

21

Accumulated funds
Total funds

The notes on pages 22 to 44 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of changes in funds

For the year ended 31 July 2015

In thousands of AUD

Reserve

Accumulated
funds

Total

Balance at 1 August 2013

129,447

120,124

249,571

-

7,335

7,335

Defined benefit plan actuarial gains

-

389

389

Total other comprehensive income

-

389

389

Total comprehensive income for the period

-

7,724

7,724

Balance at 31 July 2014

129,447

127,848

257,295

Balance at 1 August 2014

129,447

127,848

257,295

-

(4,208)

(4,208)

Defined benefit plan actuarial gains

-

1,770

1,770

Total other comprehensive income

-

1,770

1,770

Total comprehensive income for the period

-

(2,438)

(2,438)

129,447

125,410

254,857

Total comprehensive income for the period
Profit for the 12-month period
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the period
Loss for the 12-month period
Other comprehensive income

Balance at 31 July 2015

The notes on pages 22 to 44 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of cash flows
In thousands of AUD

For the year ended 31 July 2015

Note

2015

2014

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash receipts from operations
Cash paid to suppliers and employees
Cash generated from operating activities
Interest received
Interest paid

250,430

222,459

(205,515)

(209,928)

44,915

12,531

297

62

(2,048)

Net cash from operating activities

43,164

(2,531)
10,062

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

(11,074)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of investment properties
Investment in equity-accounted investees

(4,210)

9,781

-

-

17,834

(2,282)

(4,675)

Distributions from equity-accounted investees

1,010

1,500

Proceeds from sale of equity-accounted investees

8,973

-

Contribution to dissolution of equity-accounted investees

(2,000)

-

Net cash used in investing activities

4,408

10,449

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from Racing NSW funding deed

1,079

Repayment of bank borrowings
Net cash from financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

8

The notes on pages 22 to 44 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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(17,000)

(18,000)

(15,921)

(17,971)

31,651

2,540

19,255

16,715

50,906

19,255
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Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 31 July 2015

1. Reporting entity
Australian Turf Club Limited (the Company) is a company limited by guarantee which was incorporated on 1
February 2011. Financial statements of the Company are as at and for year ended 31 July 2015 comprise the Company,
and the interest in associates and joint ventures.
The Company is a for-profit entity.
The Company was incorporated on 1 February 2011 pursuant to the Australian Jockey and Sydney Turf Club’s Merger Act
2010 (the Act).

2. Basis of preparation
a.

Tier 2 general purpose financial statements
The financial statements are Tier 2 general purpose financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with
Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements (AASBs) adopted by the Australian Accounting
Standards Board (AASB), the Registered Clubs Act 1976 (NSW) and the Corporations Act 2001.
The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 9 October 2015.

b.

Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the defined benefit liability which is
recognised as the net total of the plan assets, plus unrecognised past service costs and unrecognised actuarial losses, less
unrecognised actuarial gains and the present value of the defined benefit obligations.

c.

Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.
The Company is of a kind referred to in ASIC Class Order 98/100 dated 10 July 1998 and in accordance with that Class Order,
all financial information presented in Australian dollars has been rounded to the nearest thousand unless otherwise stated.

d.

Use of estimates and judgements
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.
Information about critical judgements, assumptions and estimation uncertainties in applying accounting policies that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are included in the following note:
• Note 11 – Investments in equity accounted investees
• Note 13 – Property, plant and equipment
• Note 18 – Defined benefit asset / (liability)
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Notes to financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 July 2015

3. Significant accounting policies
a.

Investments in equity accounted investees
The Company’s interests in equity accounted investees comprise interests in associates and joint ventures. Associates
are those entities over which the Company has significant influence, but not control, over their financial and operating
policies. A joint venture is an arrangement in which the Company has joint control, whereby the Company has rights to the
net assets of the arrangement rather than rights its assets and obligations for its liabilities. The equity method is applied to
associates and joint ventures.
The Company’s interests in ThoroughVisioN Pty Limited and Australian Prices Network have been accounted for as
associates. The Company’s investments in Australian Stud Book (ASB), Australian Genetics Testing (AGT) and Stonehorse
JV (trading as The Stables) have been accounted for as joint ventures. The Company’s investments in Australian Stud
Book (ASB) and Australian Genetics Testing (AGT) were accounted for as joint ventures until 31 July 2014. The Company’s
investments in ASB and AGT were reclassified as held for sale on 31 July 2014 and were sold on 17 September 2014.
The investments are initially recorded at cost. Where the Company previously did not have significant influence and
recorded the investment at fair value, the fair value is used as the basis for the equity accounting value. Subsequently,
increments/decrements in the investment values are recorded, representing the Company’s share of current year profits/
losses and distributions. When the Company’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an equity accounted investee, the
carrying amount of that interest is reduced to zero and the recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent
that the Company has an obligation or made payments on behalf of the investee.
Thoroughbred Racing Productions (NSW) Pty Limited (TRP) is a 100% wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The
Directors do not consider the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, and statement of financial
position, to be material and consolidated financial statements have not been prepared on this basis.

b.

Financial instruments
i. Non-derivative financial assets
The Company initially recognises loans, receivables and deposits on the date the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it
transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred. Any interest in transferred financial assets that is
created or retained by the Company is recognised as a separate asset or liability.
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position when, and
only when, the Company has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
The Company has the following non-derivative financial assets: loans, receivables and deposits.
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Such
assets are recognised initially at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition
loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses.
Loans and receivables comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables (excluding prepayments).
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For the year ended 31 July 2015

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
b.

Financial instruments (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, cash at bank and call deposits with original maturities of three months
or less. Cash at bank is interest bearing with the interest rate at reporting date being 0.01%. Deposits at call are bearing an
interest rate at reporting date of 1.85% (2014: 2.50%).
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost less
provision for impairment. Trade receivables are generally due for settlement within 30 days.
The collectability of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts which are known to be uncollectible are
written off by reducing the carrying amount directly. A provision for impairment is established where there is objective
evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables.
ii. Non-derivative financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are recognised initially on the date that the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.
The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire.
The Company classifies non-derivative financial liabilities into the other financial liabilities category. Such financial liabilities
are recognised initially at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these
financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Other financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables (excluding accruals) and loans and borrowings.
Trade and other payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company to the end of the financial year which
are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.
Loans and borrowings
The Company’s loans and borrowings comprise commercial bills, line of credit and bank loans. Commercial bills payable
are recognised when issued at the net proceeds received, with the discount on issue amortised over the period to maturity.
The interest expense is recognised on an effective yield basis.

c. Assets held for sale
Non-current assets, or disposal groups comprising assets and liabilities, are classified as held-for-sale if it is highly
probable that they will be recovered primarily through sale rather than through continuing use.
Such assets, or disposal groups, are generally measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell. Impairment losses on initial classification as held-for-sale and subsequent gains and losses on remeasurement are
recognised in profit or loss.
Once classified as held-for-sale, intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are no longer amortised or
depreciated, and any equity-accounted investee is no longer equity accounted.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
d.

Property, plant and equipment
i. Recognition and measurement
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses except for assets transferred to the Company at the date of the merger which were recorded at fair value on date of
merger.
Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets
includes the cost of materials and direct labour, plus any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a
working condition for their intended use. Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is
capitalised as part of that equipment.
When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate
items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.
The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined by comparing the proceeds from
disposal with the carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment, and is recognised net in profit or loss.
ii. Subsequent costs
The cost of replacing a component of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount
of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the component will flow to the Company, and
its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day
servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
iii. Depreciation
Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value. Significant components of individual assets are
assessed and if a component has a useful life that is different from the remainder of that asset, that component is
depreciated separately.
Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each component of an
item of property, plant and equipment. Land is not depreciated.
The estimated useful lives for the current period are as follows:
• Buildings			

40 - 50 years

• Plant and equipment

3 - 15 years

These estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method of assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting
year with the effect of any changes recognised on a prospective basis.

e.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets are recognised at cost. Intangible assets relating to poker machine entitlements are assessed as having
an indefinite life under current NSW legislation and accordingly have not been amortised. As they are not amortised, they
are assessed annually for impairment.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
f.

Investment property
Investment property is property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both, but not for sale
in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
Investment property is measured at cost on initial recognition and subsequently at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.
Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the investment property.
The gain or loss on disposal of investment property is determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the
carrying amount of the investment property, and is recognised net in profit or loss.
Depreciation is based on the cost of the investment property less its residual value.
Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the investment property.
Land is not depreciated.
The estimated useful life for the current period is 40 years.

g.

Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is based on the weighted
average cost principle, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and bringing them to their existing
location and condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion
and selling expenses.

h.

Impairment
The carrying amount of the Company’s material assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may no longer be recoverable at each reporting date. If any
such indication exists then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use.
i. Non-derivative financial assets
A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had a negative
effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset.
An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its
carrying amount, and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.
Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining financial assets
are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics. All impairment losses are recognised in
the statement comprehensive income. An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
h.

Impairment (continued)
ii. Non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of the Company’s material non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists then the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. For intangible assets that have indefinite lives or that are not yet available for use, the recoverable amount is
estimated at each reporting date.
An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit (CGU) exceeds its
recoverable amount. A CGU is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash flows that largely are
independent from other assets and groups. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.
The recoverable amount of all CGU’s has been reviewed and impairment testing has been performed at 31 July 2015.
This has resulted in the recognition of an impairment of $2.5m during the period (2014: Impairment reversal of $9.5m)
included within administration expenses in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. There has
been a $31.1m impairment expense recognised on disposal of equity accounted investments during the period (2014: nil).
iii. Calculation of recoverable amount
For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels that are largely independent of the cash
flows from other assets or groups of other assets.
The recoverable amount of a CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

i.

Employee benefits
i. Defined contribution (accumulation style) superannuation plans
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution (accumulation style) superannuation funds are recognised as an
expense in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when they are due.
ii. Defined benefit superannuation funds
The Company is the employer sponsor of two defined benefit superannuation funds. The employer sponsor is required
to recognise a liability (or asset) where the present value of the defined benefit obligation, adjusted for unrecognised past
service cost exceeds (or is less than) the fair value of the underlying net assets of the fund (hereinafter referred to as the
“defined benefit obligation”). Any resulting liability or asset will be grossed up for any contributions tax.
When the calculation results in plan assets exceeding liabilities, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of any
future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan.
The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on corporate bonds that have maturity dates approximating the terms of
the Company’s obligations. The calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.
The Company recognises all actuarial gains and losses arising from the defined benefit plans directly in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
iii. Other long-term employee benefits
The Company’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits, other than defined benefit superannuation funds,
is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in both the current and prior periods
plus related on-costs. Consideration is given to on-costs, expected future salary and wage levels, and experiences of
employee departures and service periods. Expected future payments are discounted to determine its present value. The
rate used for the 2015 reporting date was 2.98% (2014: 3.47%).
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
i.

Employee benefits (continued)
iv. Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when the Company is demonstrably committed, without realistic
possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to terminate employment or where benefits are payable on known
resignation or retirement.
v. Short-term employee benefits
Liabilities for employee benefits for wages, salaries and annual leave and sick leave represent present obligations resulting
from employees’ services provided to reporting date and are calculated at undiscounted amounts based on remuneration
wage and salary rates that the Company expects to pay as at reporting date including related on- costs, such as workers
compensation insurance and payroll tax.

j.

Provisions
A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that
can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the liability.

k.

Revenue in advance
Membership fees, nomination and acceptance fees and other revenues of the Company which have been received in the
reporting period, but which relate to a subsequent accounting period, have been deferred in the statement of financial
position and will be brought to account as revenue during the period to which they relate.

l.

Revenue
Revenue is recognised at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.
i. TAB distribution
The TAB distribution includes distributions paid or owed by Tabcorp Holdings Limited (Tabcorp) to the racing industry for
the supply of racing for the year ended 31 July 2015.
The TAB / racing industry agreements set out a formula under which distributions to the NSW racing industry, and
amongst various stakeholders are made. Those agreements stipulate that each stakeholder will receive an amount
determined after the deduction of industry related expenses such as administration costs associated with running NSW
racing’s regulatory bodies. The Company recognises this income on a net income basis.
ii. Commercial
Sponsorship
Sponsorship revenue is recognised based on contractual invoice dates and the fulfilment of sponsor race day requirements
and sponsorship activity.
Membership
Membership revenue collected in advance is recognised equally throughout each month of the year. Membership revenue
collected throughout the period is recognised equally in the remaining months of the year.
Events and hospitality
Events and hospitality revenue comprises venue hire, food and beverage sales for race day and non-race day events.
These are recognised when the race day or events occur.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
iii. Broadcast rights
Broadcast revenue is recognised on an accruals basis over the life of the contract with any amounts received upfront as
base rights deferred and recognised over the life of the contract.
iv. RacingNSW prizemoney subsidy
RacingNSW prizemoney subsidy is recognised on an accruals basis.
v. Racing
Racing revenue comprises of bookmakers fees, nominations and acceptances fees. These are recognised on an accrual
basis.
vi.Training
Training revenue is recognised at the time the training services are provided.
vii. Property
Property revenue is the rental income from investment property and is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
viii. Government Grants
Grants are considered non-reciprocal transfers to the Company. Grants that compensate for expenses incurred or which
contribute to the cost of capital expenditure are recognised immediately when there is reasonable assurance that the
Company has the right to receive it.

m. Racing NSW and Racing Corp
Racing NSW and Racing Corp deductions comprise the allocation to the Company of Breeders’ and Owners’ Bonus
Scheme (BOBS), NSW unplaced starters’ rebates, rider fees, rider superannuation, Racing NSW administration costs and
Racing Corp costs. These amounts are deducted from TAB distribution revenue.

n.

Leases
Leases of property in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on a straight line basis, over the period of the lease.
Lease commitments are reported inclusive of GST with the input tax credit recoverable from the Australian Taxation
Office (ATO).

o.

Interest income and interest expense
Interest income is the income on funds invested. Interest income is recognised as it accrues in profit or loss, using the
effective interest method.
Interest expense on borrowings is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income using the
effective interest method.

p.

Income tax
All income of the Company is exempt from income tax as specified by Section 23(g) (amended to S50-45 SS9.1(a))
of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
q.

Goods and services tax
Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except where the
amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the taxation authority. In these circumstances, the GST is recognised as
part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense.
Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or
payable to, the ATO is included as a current asset or liability in the statement of financial position.
Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from
investing and financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO are classified as operating cash flows.

4

Determination of fair values
A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value, for both financial
and non-financial assets and liabilities. Where applicable, further information about the assumptions made in determining
fair values is disclosed in the accounting policies and notes specific to that asset or liability.
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Revenue
2015

2014

TAB distribution

83,544

82,045

Commercial

64,557

62,746

Broadcast rights

12,484

11,206

RacingNSW prizemoney subsidy

30,042

29,081

Racing

7,492

7,073

Training

8,697

7,911

Property

967

1,000

Other revenue

716

761

208,499

201,823

In thousands of AUD

2015

2014

RacingNSW funding drawdown - Randwick and Rosehill

3,879

29

-

8,522

Profit on sale of investments in equity-accounted investees

8,945

-

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment

8,456

-

Warwick Farm capital works on sale of property

-

(9,481)

21,280

(930)

In thousands of AUD

6

Other income

Profit on sale of investment properties

7

Expenditure

Expenditure includes the following items:
In thousands of AUD

2015

2014

Depreciation and amortisation

7,996

7,155

Impairment

2,496

(9,532)

Personnel expenses
Wages and salaries

29,322

28,396

2,260

2,071

Change in liability for annual leave and long service leave

320

372

Expenses related to defined benefit plans

736

709

3,990

3,701

36,628

35,249

Contributions to defined contribution plans

Other employment expenses
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For the year ended 31 July 2015

Cash and cash equivalents
2015

2014

10

10

Cash at bank

25,629

19,245

Cash on deposit

25,267

-

50,906

19,255

2015

2014

7,115

3,234

In thousands of AUD
Cash on hand

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows

9

Trade and other receivables

In thousands of AUD
Current
Trade receivables
Allowance for impairment on trade receivables

(112)

(192)

7,003

3,042

Other receivables

19,557

9,169

Allowance for impairment on other receivables

(2,972)

Loans receivable
Prepayments

(200)

16,585

8,969

120

120

4,210

4,327

27,918

16,458

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables during the period was as follows:
In thousands of AUD
At 1 August
Reversal of impairment recognised
Impairment loss recognised
Balance at 31 July

2015
(192)
80
(112)

2014
(131)
(61)
(192)
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Trade and other receivables (continued)

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of other receivables during the period was as follows:
In thousands of AUD
At 1 August
Reversal of impairment recognised

2015

2014

(200)

(100)

100

-

Impairment loss recognised*

(2,872)

(100)

Balance at 31 July

(2,972)

(200)

* The amount recognised for the period relates to Tabcorp wagering distributions (PGI) paid to RacingNSW who collect and
distribute the monies on the industry’s behalf, and the subsequent suggestion of the intention by RacingNSW to impose
conditions on amounts owed to the Company which were not imposed on other industry participants who receive funds from
this pool.

10 Assets held for sale
In thousands of AUD

2015

2014

Assets and assets of disposal groups classified as held for sale
(a) Associates

-

711

(b) Land

-

7,562

-

8,273

(a) The Company’s 50% interest in Australian Stud Book (ASB) and Australian Genetics Testing (AGT) was reclassified as
held for sale on 31 July 2014.
(b) A parcel of land at Warwick Farm, known as ‘Coopers Paddock’, was reclassified as held for sale on 13 June 2014.
The above assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale were disposed of within 12 months of being classified as held
for sale.
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11 Investments in equity-accounted investees
In thousands of AUD

2015

2014

892

1,801

Share of net profit / (loss) of associates and joint
ventures included in the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income
Associates
Share of operating profit of associates
Share of impairment recognised by associates

-

(2,028)

Impairment of carrying value of associates

-

(3,023)

Loss on disposal of associates

(29,927)

-

Share of net (loss) / profit of associates

(29,035)

(3,250)

(418)

(73)

Joint Ventures
Share of net (loss) / profit of joint ventures
Costs associated with acquisition of controlling
interest in joint ventures

(1,189)
(30,642)

(3,323)

Investments accounted for using the equity method
in the statement of financial position
Associates
Joint Ventures

329

20,079

-

3,417

329

23,496

Associates
The Company had a 50% equity interest in ThoroughVisioN Pty Limited (TVN) until 15 March 2015. TVN was dissolved via a
Deed of Separation on this date. The Company has written-off its investment in TVN ($20.2m), unpaid broadcast rights owing
($6.7m) and contributed costs of $2.0m associated with the wind-up of TVN. An additional provision of $1.0m remains to
cover estimated additional costs of winding up.
The Company’s investment in Australian Prices Network (APN) has been accounted for as an associate.
Joint Ventures
The Company had a 50% interest in Stonehorse JV (trading as The Stables), an unincorporated joint venture. The Company
acquired the remaining interest in the joint venture on 29 April 2015. The operating activities and net assets of the joint venture
were absorbed into the Company as of this date.

12

Investment property
2015

2014

Opening balance

-

1,313

Disposals

-

(1,313)

Balance at 31 July

-

In thousands of AUD
Deemed cost

-
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13 Property, plant and equipment
Land and
buildings

Plant and
equipment

Construction
work in progress

Total

298,638

21,972

2,397

323,007

Additions

2,670

2,190

11,052

15,912

Disposals

-

In thousands of AUD
Cost
Balance at 1 August 2014

Construction work in progress transfers

(1,125)

-

3,955

6,652

-

-

-

-

Balance at 31 July 2015

305,263

29,689

2,842

337,794

Balance at 1 August 2013

305,690

18,267

2,590

326,547

Additions

-

-

4,182

4,182

Disposals

-

Reclassification to held for sale

Construction work in progress transfers
Reclassification to held for sale

510

3,865

(4,375)

-

(160)
-

-

-

298,638

21,972

2,397

323,007

Balance at 1 August 2014

45,374

4,715

-

50,089

Depreciation for the period

4,957

3,039

-

7,996

Impairment for the period

2,496

-

-

2,496

(1,122)

-

(1,122)

Balance at 31 July 2014

(7,562)

(160)

(10,607)

(1,125)

(7,562)

Depreciation and impairment

Disposals

-

Balance at 31 July 2015

52,827

6,632

-

59,459

Balance at 1 August 2013

50,162

2,327

-

52,489

4,744

2,411

-

7,155

(9,532)

-

-

(9,532)

-

(23)

Depreciation for the period
Impairment reversal for the period
Disposals
Balance at 31 July 2014

-

(23)

45,374

4,715

-

50,089

At 1 August 2014

253,264

17,257

2,397

272,918

At 31 July 2015

252,436

23,057

2,842

278,335

At 1 August 2013

255,528

15,940

2,590

274,058

At 31 July 2014

253,264

17,257

2,397

272,918

Carrying amounts
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13 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Core and Non-core Property
In accordance with Section 41(j)(2) of the Registered Clubs Act 1976 (NSW) (as amended), the Company defines its core
property and non-core property as follows:
Core property
The Company has determined the following to comprise its core-property as at 31 July 2015:
1

the course proper (and Kensington Track) at Royal Randwick Racecourse, the course proper at Rosehill Gardens
Racecourse, the course proper at Warwick Farm Racecourse, and the course proper at Canterbury Park Racecourse,
along with all training tracks at Royal Randwick, Rosehill Gardens and Warwick Farm Racecourses;

2

the premises owned or occupied by the Company on Royal Randwick Racecourse (including the defined area of the
licensed premises of the registered club) comprising facilities, provided by the Company for the race day use of members
and their guests;

3

the premises owned or occupied by the Company on Rosehill Gardens Racecourse comprising facilities, provided by the
Company for the race day use of members and their guests;

4

the premises owned or occupied by the Company on Warwick Farm Racecourse comprising facilities provided by the
Company for the race day use of members and their guests; and

5

the premises owned or occupied by the Company on Canterbury Park Racecourse comprising facilities provided by the
Company for the race day use of members and their guests.

Non-core property
The Company has determined that as at 31 July 2015 all property which is not specifically defined as core-property is non-core
property.

14 Intangible assets
2015

2014

At 1 August

270

270

Balance at 31 July

270

270

At 1 August

90

62

Additions

22

28

112

90

382

360

In thousands of AUD
Poker machine entitlements
Deemed cost

Trademarks

Balance at 31 July

Poker machine licenses have been assessed as having an indefinite useful life under current legislation in NSW and are valued
at cost. The recoverable amount has been assessed on a fair value, less costs to sell basis. The fair value of the licenses
was derived from recent third party transaction prices for the transfer of such entitlements by Sydney Metropolitan Clubs
between December 2014 and June 2015 of $14,000 which is above the Company’s carrying value per entitlement which was
$9,000 per Poker Machine license. Accordingly at 31 July 2015, the carrying amount of assets remains appropriate, with no
impairment required (2014: No impairment required).
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15 Trade and other payables
In thousands of AUD

2015

2014

673

1,077

10,061

6,527

10,734

7,604

2015

2014

10,000

10,000

10,000

27,000

Current
Trade payables
Other payables and accruals

16 Loans and borrowings
In thousands of AUD
Current liabilities
Bank borrowings
Non-current liabilities
Bank borrowings

Financing facilities
The Company entered into a financing facility on 30 November 2012 with Westpac Banking Corporation. This financing
facility was amended on 17 July 2014. The Company has access to total finance facilities of $42,000,000 which mature on
15 November 2017. This consists of a $27,000,000 term loan facility, $10,000,000 working capital facility and $5,000,000
overdraft facility. At 31 July 2015, $10,000,000 of the term loan facility and $10,000,000 of the working capital facility have
been utilised.
Current liabilities at 31 July 2015 include the working capital facility of $10,000,000. The drawn balance of the term loan
facility of $10,000,000 has been classified as a non-current liability at 31 July 2015.

17 Employee benefits
2015

2014

Liability for annual leave

2,220

2,097

Liability for long service leave

2,051

1,873

Other employee benefits

2,729

2,360

7,000

6,330

496

471

496

471

In thousands of AUD
Current

Non-current
Liability for long service leave
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18 Defined benefit asset / (liability)
In thousands of AUD

2015

2014

Total fair value of plan assets

9,513

10,218

Total present value of defined benefit obligations

(7,511)

Total surplus / (deficits) in the plans recognised in
the statement of financial position

2,002

(9,456)
762

The Company makes contributions to two defined benefits superannuation funds originating from Australian Jockey Club Limited
and Sydney Turf Club that provide defined benefit amounts for employees upon retirement. One Plan entitles a defined benefits
superannuation fund retired employee to receive an annual payment equal to 20% of final average salary for each year of service
the employee provided from 1 July 1990 and 10% of final average salary for each year of service the employee provided prior to
1 July 1990. The other Plan consists of two sections, the Defined Benefits Section based on the number of years of membership
and final average salary, and the Accumulation Section based on contributions made and investment earnings.
Fair value of plan assets comprise:
2015

2014

Equity securities

59%

61%

Fixed interest securities

18%

21%

6%

7%

17%

11%

100%

100%

In thousands of AUD

2015

2014

Defined benefit obligations at 1 August

9,456

8,805

(2,149)

(1,004)

1,157

1,163

in percentage

Property
Other

Movement in the present value of the defined benefit obligations

Benefits paid by the plan
Current service costs and interest
Actuarial gains / (losses) in other comprehensive income
Defined benefit obligations at 31 July

(953)
7,511

492
9,456
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18 Defined benefit asset / (liability) (continued)
Movement in fair value of plan assets
In thousands of AUD
Fair value of plan assets at 1 August
Contributions paid into the plan
Benefits paid by the plan

2015

2014

10,218

9,598

348

463

(2,149)

(1,004)

Expected return on plan assets

279

280

Actuarial gains in other comprehensive income

817

881

Fair value of plan assets at 31 July

9,513

10,218

Actual gain/(loss) on plan assets

1,096

1,161

In thousands of AUD

2015

2014

Cumulative amount at 1 August

1,078

1,467

Actuarial (gains) and losses recognised in other comprehensive income

Recognised during the period

(1,770)

Cumulative amount at 31 July

(692)

(389)
1,078

Actuarial assumptions
Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages)
2015

2014

Discount rate at 31 July

4.0%

3.1%

Future salary increases

3.0%

3.6%
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19 Revenue in advance
In thousands of AUD

2015

2014

13,653

8,275

13,653

8,275

43,361

16,609

43,361

16,609

Current
Revenue in advance

Non-Current
Revenue in advance

Revenue in advance includes amounts received in advance from the NSW Government on account of light rail, Tabcorp on
account of media rights, sponsorship arrangements, memberships, function arrangements, private suites, Chairman’s club
tables and other contractual arrangements as well as the RacingNSW Deed of Advance distribution.
In 2009/10, Australian Jockey Club Limited and Sydney Turf Club both entered into Deeds of Advance distribution with
RacingNSW. Pursuant to the Australian Jockey and Sydney Turf Clubs Merger Act 2010, the Company became party to
both Deeds replacing the former clubs. Under the Deeds, both clubs received an advance distribution of “Racefields fees”,
repayable to RacingNSW, with applicable interest, if final appeals were not favourable to RacingNSW requiring it to repay funds
to the claimants. The advance distributions were previously recorded as a liability of both clubs subject to final appeals being
heard. During 2011/12, the final appeals were found in favour of RacingNSW. During the 2013 financial period, RacingNSW
and the Company agreed in writing that the amounts instead will be settled over the period 2016/17 to 2017/18. Based on this
correspondence the Company has classified the amount as a non-current liability in accordance with the revised terms.

20 Other provisions
In thousands of AUD

2015

2014

9,416

-

9,416

-

1,786

9,059

1,786

9,059

Current
Other provisions

Non-Current
Other provisions

A provision has been recognised as a result of contractual obligations owing in relation to the sale of land by the Company at
Warwick Farm.
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21 Accumulated funds and reserves
Accumulated funds
The Company is a company limited by guarantee and without share capital, with one Membership class.
In accordance with the Constitution of the Company, every Voting Member is liable to contribute, for the time they are a
Member, an amount not exceeding $1 during the tenure of their membership or within one year after cessation of their
membership toward the debts and liabilities in the event that the Company is wound up. These liabilities include the costs,
charges and expenses of winding-up. Non-voting Members are not liable to contribute any amount in the event that the
Company is wound up.
The total amount which Voting Members would be required to contribute in the event that the Company is wound up is
$14,851 (2014: $15,144).

Reserve
All net assets received by the Company and Day 1 fair value adjustments were recorded against equity, being the “Day 1
reserve”.

22 Operating leases
Leases as lessee
Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows:
2015

2014

Less than one year

12

378

Between one and five years

10

388

22

766

In thousands of AUD

The Company leases some plant and equipment and motor vehicles under operating leases. The remaining term of these
leases are generally between one and four years.
On 2 October 2008, the Australian Jockey Club Limited signed a 99 year lease over the Randwick Racecourse. This lease was
transferred to the Company as a result of the Act (refer to Note 1). The lease, due to expire in 2107, is for a nominal rent. Due
to the nature of the property and the restrictive use conditions under the arrangement, the Company is not able to reliably
measure the value of the entitlement to use the property. Accordingly no amounts are recognised. As it has no net effect on the
result each period, it is not considered to affect the fair presentation of the financial report.
During the year ended 31 July 2015 an amount of $643,699 (2014: $380,772) was recognised as an expense in the statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in respect of operating leases.
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23 Capital commitments
During the year ended 31 July 2015 the Company entered into contracts to purchase property, plant and equipment for a total
of $17,058,000 (2014: $1,303,000) which consists of the following:
In thousands of AUD
Rosehill Gardens upgrade
Other

2015

2014

16,386

-

672

1,303

17,058

1,303

Of the $24 million grant allocation to the upgrade of infrastructure at Rosehill Gardens, $Nil is yet to be committed (2014:
$20.7 million).

24 Related parties
The following were key management personnel of the Company at any time during the year and unless otherwise indicated
were key management personnel for the entire period:
Board Members
• Mr John Camilleri (resigned 2 December 2014)
• Mr Michael Crismale
• Ms Trish Egan (appointed 1 February 2015)
• Mr Bill Evans
• Mr Steve Grant
• Mr Laurie Macri
• Mr Matthew McGrath (appointed 1 February 2015)
• Mr Wilf Mula (resigned 1 February 2015)
• Ms Julia Ritchie (appointed 1 February 2015)
All members of the Board act in an honorary capacity and receive no remuneration or other benefits for their services. Board
Members may be reimbursed for expenditure incurred in the conduct of their official duties. All of these transactions were on
normal commercial terms and conditions.

Executives
Chief Executive:
• Mr Darren Pearce
During the period the executives were:
• Mr Graham Brown - Infrastructure, Property and Special Projects (appointed 5 March 2015)
• Mr Matthew Galanos - Chief Financial Officer
• Mr Tony Partridge - Chief Operating Officer
• Mr Matthew Rudolph - Racing
• Ms Jennifer Schembri - Human Resources
• Ms Livia Bartoletti - Legal Counsel (separated 24 October 2014)
• Mr Mark Flanagan - Infrastructure and Development (separated 23 December 2014)
• Ms Lynell Peck - Hospitality and Operations (separated 13 April 2015)

Key management personnel compensation
During the year ended 31 July 2015, the total key management personnel compensation recognised in profit or loss was
$2,956,290 (2014: $2,510,274).
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Other related party transactions
2015

2014

Services provided to the Australian Stud Book by the Company

275,814

1,176,522

Services provided by the Australian Stud Book to the Company

-

-

Services provided to the Australian Prices Network by the Company

300,887

309,484

Services provided by the Australian Prices Network to the Company

(34,683)

(39,110)

Services provided to the Australian Genetics Testing by the Company

2,289

16,500

Services provided to the Stonehorse JV by the Company

40,138

562,858

Services provided by the Stonehorse JV to the Company

(284,060)

In AUD

Rights fees paid to the Company from ThoroughVisioN Pty Ltd
Contribution provided by the ATC to ThoroughVisioN Pty Ltd
Services provided by ThoroughVisioN Pty Ltd to the Company
The Company’s receivables as at 31 July:
Australian Stud Book
Australian Prices Network

608,122

(869,226)
7,753,556

(3,000,000)
(547,895)

(1,446,678)

2015

2014

-

68,196

20,978

25,872

Australian Genetics Testing

-

-

Stonehorse JV

-

537,929

ThoroughVisioN Pty Ltd

-

3,500,463

20,978

4,132,460

-

-

3,120

3,120

The Company’s payables and provisions as at 31 July:
Australian Stud Book
Australian Prices Network
Stonehorse JV
ThoroughVisioN Pty Ltd

-

2,316

1,000,000

91,371

1,003,120

96,807

The Company provides accounting and administrative services to the associate, Australian Prices Network and previously jointly
controlled entities which were Australian Stud Book and Australian Genetics Testing. The Australian Stud Book previously also
leased office space from the Company. Charges for these services are based on commercial terms and conditions.
The Company’s investment in the associate, ThoroughVisioN Pty Ltd (TVN), allowed for a rights fee payable to the Company for
the broadcast of thoroughbred race meetings held at the Company’s four venues. TVN subsequently charges the Company a
fee for the production costs associated with the provision of the broadcast coverage.
Thoroughbred Racing Productions (NSW) Pty Limited (TRP) is a 100% wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. As at 31 July
2015 there are no outstanding balances between the Company and TRP.
All outstanding balances with the associates and joint ventures are priced on an arm’s length basis. None of these balances are
secured.
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25 Contingencies
Financial assistance was provided to both the Australian Jockey Club Limited and the Sydney Turf Club by way of
interminable loans from the Racecourse Redevelopment Fund. These loans were transferred to the Company as a result
of the Act (refer to Note 1). These loans are only repayable either on the sale of properties which have benefited by the
expenditure of loans, or in the event the Company ceasing its current operations. The maximum contingent liability at 31
July 2015 in respect of these loans which has not been provided for in the Financial Statements amounts to $101,407,000
(2014: $101,407,000). On 1 July 1998 the operations of the Racecourse Development Fund were transferred to the
respective controlling authorities. Accordingly, any contingent liability will be in favour of RacingNSW.

26 Subsequent events
There have been no other events subsequent to reporting date which would have a material effect on the Company’s
financial statements at 31 July 2015.
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Directors’ declaration
In the opinion of the directors of Australian Turf Club Limited (the Company):
(a) the financial statements and notes, set out on pages 18 to 44, are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:
(i)

giving a true and fair view of the Company’s financial position as at 31 July 2015 and of its performance for the year
ended on that date; and
(ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements and the Corporations
Regulations 2001; and
(b) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due
and payable.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of directors.

Mr Michael Crismale
Chairman
Dated at Sydney this 9th day of October 2015.
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Independent auditor’s report to the
members of Australian Turf Club Limited

Report on the financial report
We have audited the accompanying financial report of Australian Turf Club Limited (the Company), which comprises the
statement of financial position as at 31 July 2015, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
statement of changes in funds and statement of cash flows for the year ended on that date, notes 1 to 26 comprising a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the directors’ declaration.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial report
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements and the Corporations Act 2001 and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements
relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is
free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial report.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.
We performed the procedures to assess whether in all material respects the financial report presents fairly, in accordance with
the Corporations Act 2001 and Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements, a true and fair view
which is consistent with our understanding of the Company’s financial position and of its performance.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

KPMG, an Australian partnership and a member
firm of the KPMG network of independent member
firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity.

Liability limited by a scheme approved under
Professional Standards Legislation.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Australian Turf Club Limited (continued)

Independence
In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001.
Auditor’s opinion
In our opinion the financial report of Australian Turf Club Limited is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:
(a) giving a true and fair view of the Company’s financial position as at 31 July 2015 and of its performance for the year ended
on that date; and
(b) complying with Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

KPMG

AW Young				T Duvall
Partner					Partner
Sydney
9 October 2015
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Feature Race Results
PRIZE
MONEY

RACE NAME

WINNER / RIDER

DISTANCE
(Metres)

WEIGHT
(KG)

MANAGING OWNER

TRAINER

$4,000,000

Longines Queen Elizabeth Stakes

Criterion (NZ)/Craig Williams

2000m

59.0

Sir Owen Glenn

Chris Waller

$3,500,000

Tooheys New Golden Slipper

Vancouver/Tommy Berry

1200m

56.5

F A & Mrs B L
Kennedy

Gai Waterhouse

GROUP 1

$3,000,000

The Star 150th Doncaster Mile

Kermadec (NZ)/Glen Boss

1600m

50.0

N Morgan

Chris Waller

$2,500,000

Darley T.J Smith Stakes

Chautauqua/Tommy Berry

1200m

58.5

R & C Legh Racing

M, W & J Hawkes

$2,000,000

BMW Australian Derby

Mongolian Khan/Opie Bosson

2400m

56.5

Inner Mongolia Rider
Horse Industry Ltd

Murray Baker

$1,600,000

Schweppes 150th Sydney Cup

Grand Marshal (GB)/Jim Cassidy

3200m

52.0

C C Lei

Chris Waller

$1,500,000

The BMW

Hartnell (GB)/James McDonald

2400m

57.5

Godolphin

John O’Shea

$1,000,000

Inglis Sires’

Pride of Dubai/Hugh Bowman

1400m

56.5

Sheikh Mohammed
Bin Khalifa Al
Maktoum

Peter & Paul
Snowden

$1,000,000

George Ryder Stakes

Real Impact (JPN)/James McDonald

1500m

59.0

Carrot Farm

Noriyuki Hori

$1,000,000

De Bortoli Wines Golden Rose

Hallowed Crown/Hugh Bowman

1400m

56.5

Gooree Stud
Syndicate

Bart & James
Cummings

$1,000,000

Seven News Australian Oaks

Gust of Wind (NZ)/Tye Angland

2400m

56.0

O J Wong

John Sargent

$1,000,000

Cellarbrations Queen of the
Turf Stakes

Amanpour/Kerrin McEvoy

1600m

57.0

E M Cojuangco

Gai Waterhouse

$600,000

Coolmore Classic

Plucky Belle/Linda Meech

1500m

53.0

D & M Esplin Pty Ltd

Peter G Moody

$600,000

Girvan Waugh Randwick Guineas

Hallowed Crown/Hugh Bowman

1600m

56.5

Darley Australia Pty
Ltd Syndicate

Bart & James
Cummings

$500,000

The Star Epsom

He’s Your Man (FR)/Joao Moreira

1600m

52.5

Fair Salinia Ltd
Syndicate

Chris Waller

$500,000

SKY Racing Rosehill Guineas

Volkstok’n’barrell (NZ)/Craig Williams

2000m

56.5

G J Cossey

Donna Logan

$500,000

Liverpool City Council Chipping
Norton Stakes

Contributer (IRE)/James McDonald

1600m

59.0

Godolphin

John O’Shea

$500,000

Canterbury Stakes

Cosmic Endeavour/James McDonald

1300m

57.0

D C & Mrs J R Kelly

Gai Waterhouse

$500,000

Ranvet Stakes

Contributer (IRE)/James McDonald

2000m

59.0

Godolphin

John O’Shea

$400,000

Vinery Stud Stakes

Fenway/Blake Shinn

2000m

56.0

Alpara Lodge

Lee & Shannon
Hope

$400,000

McGrath Estate Agents Metropolitan

Opinion (IRE)/Tye Angland

2400m

56.0

Highclere
Thoroughbred Racing
Australia

Chris Waller

$400,000

Moet & Chandon Champagne Stakes

Pasadena Girl (NZ)/Hugh Bowman

1600m

54.5

T M Scales

Peter G Moody

$400,000

Schweppes All-Aged Stakes

Dissident/Jim Cassidy

1400m

59.0

Newgate Dissident
Syndicate

Peter G Moody

$400,000

Moet & Chandon
Spring Champion Stakes

Hampton Court/Joshua Parr

2000m

56.5

Milburn Creek
Thoroughbred Stud

Gai Waterhouse

$400,000

Coolmore Flight Stakes

First Seal/Blake Shinn

1600m

56.0

China Horse Club

John P Thompson

$400,000

Canadian Club Galaxy

Sweet Idea/Blake Shinn

1100m

55.5

D & L Henderson

Gai Waterhouse

$350,000

George Main Stakes

Sacred Falls (NZ)/Zac Purton

1600m

59.0

Raffles Thoroughbred
Racing Syndicate

Chris Waller
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PRIZE
MONEY

RACE NAME

WINNER / RIDER

DISTANCE
(Metres)

WEIGHT
(KG)

MANAGING OWNER

TRAINER

$500,000

Arrowfield 3YO Sprint

Delectation/Hugh Bowman

1200m

56.5

C C Lai

Chris Waller

$400,000

Hyland Race Colours
Challenge Stakes

Miracles of Life/Hugh Bowman

1000m

56.5

Stonestreet Stables
LLC

Peter & Paul
Snowden

GROUP 2

$300,000

Guinness Reisling Stakes

English/Blake Shinn

1200m

55.5

Newhaven Park

Gai Waterhouse

$300,000

UNSW Todman Stakes

Vancouver/Tommy Berry

1200m

55.5

F A & Mrs B L
Kennedy

Gai Waterhouse

$300,000

Schweppes Chairman’s Handicap

Tremec (NZ)/Brenton Avdulla

2600m

53.0

Sir Patrick & Lady
Hogan

John P Thompson

$300,000

Drummond Golf Sapphire Stakes

Avoid Lightning/Tim Clark

1200m

55.5

M J Abdallah

Les Bridge

$250,000

Optus Apollo Stakes

Contributer (IRE)/James McDonald

1400m

59.0

Godolphin

John O’Shea

$250,000

Blackwoods Uvex Silver Slipper Stakes

Headwater/Blake Shinn

1100m

56.5

Vinery Stud Syndicate

M, W & J Hawkes

$200,000

Stan Fox Stakes

Shooting to Win/Tim Clark

1500m

56.5

T K Stuckey

Peter & Paul
Snowden

$200,000

Bloodstock.com.au Premiere Stakes

Famous Seamus (NZ)/Tim Clark

1200m

58.5

J & Mrs J D Simpson

Noel MayfieldSmith

$200,000

Bowermans Office Furniture Shorts

Terravista/Corey Brown

1100m

56.5

N B Couper

Joseph Pride

$200,000

Blackwoods CRC Hobartville Stakes

Hallowed Crown/Hugh Bowman

1400m

56.5

Darley Australia Pty
Ltd Syndicate

Bart & James
Cummings

$200,000

Ascend Sales Trophies Hill Stakes

Junoob (GB)/Blake Shinn

2000m

59.0

R A Pegum

Chris Waller

$200,000

Theo Marks Stakes

Cluster/Tim Clark

1400m

53.0

P G & Mrs W E
Moran

Peter & Paul
Snowden

$200,000

Expressway Stakes

Weary (FR)/Tommy Berry

1200m

58.5

G L & Mrs M Grimish

Chris Waller

$175,000

Surround Stakes

First Seal/Blake Shinn

1400m

56.0

China Horse Club

John P Thompson

$175,000

Liberty International Underwriters
Light Fingers Stakes

Adrift (NZ)/Tye Angland

1200m

56.0

Fairway
Thoroughbreds
Syndicate

Gai Waterhouse

$175,000

Tulloch Stakes

Hauraki/James McDonald

2000m

56.0

Godolphin

John O’Shea

$175,000

Cellarbrations Phar Lap Stakes

Winx/Tommy Berry

1500m

54.5

Magic Bloodstock
Racing

Chris Waller

$175,000

Pro-Ride Warwick Stakes

Tiger Tees (NZ)/Glyn Schofield

1400m

59.0

A J Rix

Joseph Pride

$175,000

Tattersalls Club Chelmsford Stakes

Hawkspur/Jim Cassidy

1600m

59.0

D Puglisi

Chris Waller

$175,000

Coolmore Tea Rose Stakes

First Seal/Blake Shinn

1400m

56.0

China Horse Club

John P Thompson

$175,000

Inglis Villiers

Rudy/Luke Tarrant

1600m

53.0

Dr T P Clarke

Helen Page

$175,000

Ascend Sales Trophies
Emancipation Stakes

Catkins/James McDonald

1500m

57.0

Ingham Racing

Chris Waller

$175,000

NSW Thoroughbred Breeders Classic

Catkins/Hugh Bowman

1200m

57.0

Ingham Racing

Chris Waller

$175,000

APN Outdoor Ajax Stakes

Burbero (NZ)/Brodie Loy

1500m

56.0

J S S Richardson

Bjorn Baker

$175,000

Pago Pago Stakes

Tarquin/William Buick

1200m

55.5

Godolphin

John O’Shea

$175,000

Magic Night Stakes

Speak Fondly/Tommy Berry

1200m

55.5

Gooree Stud

Gai Waterhouse

$175,000

Sydney City Toyota
Roman Consul Stakes

Brazen Beau/Joao Moreira

1200m

56.5

Ontrack
Thoroughbreds No 1

Chris Waller

$175,000

Coolmore Furious Stakes

Winx/Hugh Bowman

1200m

56.0

Magic Bloodstock
Racing

Chris Waller

$175,000

It’s Betting Season at the TAB
Shannon Stakes

Rock Sturdy/Corey Brown

1500m

56.0

Gooree Pastoral Co

Joseph Pride

$175,000

Les Johnson Memorial
Sweet Embrace Stakes

Always Allison/Glyn Schofield

1200m

55.5

P J & Mrs A T
Fleming

Chris Waller

$175,000

Pro-Ride Skyline Stakes

Exosphere/James McDonald

1200m

55.5

Godolphin

John O’Shea

$175,000

Coolmore Silver Shadow Stakes

Bring Me the Maid/Luke Nolen

1200m

57.0

Wylie Dalziel Roy
Higgins Racing

Peter G Moody

$175,000

McGrath Estate Agents Missile Stakes

Sweet Idea/Tommy Berry

1200m

56.5

D & L Henderson

Gai Waterhouse

$175,000

Tattersalls Club Tramway Stakes

Lucia Valentina (NZ)/Kerrin McEvoy

1400m

56.0

L Petagna

Kris Lees

$175,000

Blackwoods Sidchrome Millie Fox Stakes

Catkins/Hugh Bowman

1300m

57.0

Ingham Racing

Chris Waller
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Feature Race Results (continued)
PRIZE
MONEY

RACE NAME

WINNER / RIDER

DISTANCE
(Metres)

WEIGHT
(KG)

MANAGING OWNER

TRAINER

GROUP 3
$500,000

Girvan Waugh Percy Sykes Stakes

Ottoman/Sam Clipperton

1200m

54.0

Godolphin

John O’Shea

$300,000

PJ’s Irish Pub Parramatta
Golden Pendant

Arabian Gold/Blake Shinn

1400m

57.0

N Moraitis AM

David Vandyke

$200,000

Gloaming Stakes

Sweynesse/Kerrin McEvoy

1800m

56.5

Godolphin

John O’Shea

$200,000

Widden Kindergarten Stakes

Furnaces/James McDonald

1100m

56.5

Godolphin

John O’Shea

$200,000

The Daily Telegraph
Carbine Club Stakes

Hi World/Kerrin McEvoy

1600m

56.0

Oldknow Racing

Peter G Moody

$200,000

Dilmah Tea P J Bell Stakes

Miss Cover Girl/Glen Boss

1200m

54.0

Ms J Sommerfield

Kelly Schweida

$200,000

TAB Adrian Knox Stakes

Candelara/Hugh Bowman

2000m

56.5

K Papanicolaou

Bjorn Baker

$150,000

Aspiration Quality

Adorabeel (NZ)/Sam Clipperton

1600m

54.0

Proven
Thoroughbreds
Syndicate

Joseph Pride

$150,000

Widden Stakes

Fireworks/Brenton Avdulla

1100m

54.5

Fairway
Thoroughbreds

Gerald Ryan

$150,000

Canonbury Stakes

Vancouver/Tommy Berry

1100m

57.5

F A & Mrs B L
Kennedy

Gai Waterhouse

$150,000

Adaptra Southern Cross Stakes

Heart Testa/Jason Collett

1200m

55.0

K T Nam

Chris Waller

$150,000

Robrick Lodge Triscay Stakes

Thump/Tye Angland

1200m

55.0

Cressfield

Kris Lees

$150,000

Guy Walter Stakes
(formerly Wiggle Stakes)

Danesiri/Christian Reith

1400m

54.0

S J Fell

John P Thompson

$150,000

Liverpool City Cup

It’s Somewhat (USA)/James McDonald

1300m

57.0

Godolphin

John O’Shea

$150,000

Wenona Girl Handicap

Griante/Hugh Bowman

1200m

57.5

D R Brideoake

David Brideoake

$150,000

Smooth FM Maurice McCarten Stakes

Target in Sight/James McDonald

1100m

54.0

Champion
Thoroughbreds

Joseph Pride

$150,000

McGrath Estate Agents Sky High
Stakes

Hartnell (GB)/James McDonald

2000m

55.5

Godolphin

John O’Shea

$150,000

The Longest Ride N E Manion Cup

Permit (GB)/Tommy Berry

2400m

54.5

R Craigie

Chris Waller

$150,000

TAB Birthday Card Stakes

Shamalia/Hugh Bowman

1200m

55.5

Think Big Stud

Bart & James
Cummings

$150,000

Hertz Epona Stakes

Scratchy Bottom/Craig Williams

1900m

54.0

Gilgai Farm

Michael Kent

$150,000

The Schweppervescence

Takedown/Kerrin McEvoy

1400m

58.0

R M & Mrs D A
Anderson

Gary Moore

$150,000

The Sunday Telegraph
Neville Sellwood Stakes

Pornichet (FR)/Blake Shinn

2000m

55.5

Mt Hallowell Stud

Gai Waterhouse

2015 Tooheys New Golden Slipper winner – Vancouver

Photo: Bradley Photographers

Annual Report

Feature Race Results (continued)
PRIZE
MONEY

RACE NAME

WINNER / RIDER

DISTANCE
(Metres)

WEIGHT
(KG)

MANAGING OWNER

TRAINER

$150,000

Irresistible Pools & Spas
Star Kingdom Stakes

Generalife/James McDonald

1200m

56.0

Godolphin

John O’Shea

$150.000

Hyland Race Colours
Doncaster Prelude

Excess Knowledge (GB)/Kerrin McEvoy

1500m

55.5

A & S Olive

Gai Waterhouse

GROUP 3

$150,000

Johnnie Walker Frank Packer Plate

Hi World/Kerrin McEvoy

2000m

56.5

Oldknow Racing

Peter G Moody

$150,000

Ticketek Hall Mark Stakes

Our Boy Malachi/Tommy Berry

1200m

57.5

R M Donovan

M, W & J Hawkes

$150,000

Kari J H B Carr Stakes

Slightly Sweet/Kathy O’Hara

1400m

56.0

Ms E K Esplin

Jason Coyle

$150,000

Japan Racing Association Plate

Gypsy Diamond/Sam Clipperton

2000m

54.0

Planette
Thoroughbred Trading
Pty Ltd Syndicate

Peter & Paul
Snowden

$150,000

Eskimo Prince Stakes

Scissor Kick/Tye Angland

1200m

58.5

Arrowfield Pastoral
Pty Ltd Syndicate

Paul Messara

$125,000

Kingston Town Stakes

He’s Your Man (FR)/Hugh Bowman

2000m

56.5

Fair Salinia Ltd

Chris Waller

$125,000

Colin Stephen Quality

Deane Martin (NZ)/Brenton Avdulla

2400m

55.0

G J Ashby

Bruce Wallace

$125,000

APN Outdoor Craven Plate

Moriarty (IRE)/Blake Shinn

2000m

59.0

K J Hunt

Chris Waller

$125,000

Summer Cup

I’m Imposing (GB)/Tye Angland

2000m

59.0

R C Callander

Chris Waller

$125,000

Synergy FX Up and Coming Stakes

Scissor Kick/Tye Angland

1300m

54.5

Arrowfield Pastoral
Pty Ltd Syndicate

Paul Messara

$125,000

Bill Ritchie Handicap

Manawanui/Tye Angland

1400m

58.0

Mrs G D Leemon

Ron Leemon

$125,000

Smithfield RSL Club
San Domenico Stakes

Nostradamus/James McDonald

1100m

56.0

Koundouris
Bloodstock Syndicate

M, W & J Hawkes

$125,000

MTA NSW Run to the Rose

Hallowed Crown/Joshua Parr

1200m

58.0

Gooree Stud
Syndicate

Bart & James
Cummings

$125,000

Concorde Stakes

Wouldnt It Be Nice/Sam Clipperton

1000m

56.0

Ms C G Collis

Paul Perry

$125,000

Ming Dynasty Quality Handicap

Panzer Division/Tye Angland

1400m

55.0

Arrowfield Pastoral
Pty Ltd Syndicate

Paul Messara

$125,000

McGrath Estate Agents Angst Stakes

Neena Rock/Tye Angland

1600m

56.0

Mrs C & W Bolton

John Sargent

$125,000

City Tattersalls Club Nivison

Avoid Lightning/Tim Clark

1200m

56.0

M J Abdallah

Les Bridge

$125,000

Irresistible Pools & Spas
Sheraco Stakes

Catkins/Hugh Bowman

1200m

58.0

Ingham Racing

Chris Waller

$125,000

Show County Quality

Terravista/Hugh Bowman

1200m

56.0

N B Couper

Joseph Pride

$125,000

Toy Show Quality

My Sabeel (NZ)/Glyn Schofield

1300m

54.0

F Scali

Kevin Moses

2015 Longines Queen Elizabeth Stakes winner - Criterion

Photo: Bradley Photographers
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